
Military Resistance: thomasfbarton@earthlink.net 5.16.17 Print it out: color best.  Pass it on. 

 

Military Resistance 15E3 

 
 

 
 
 

Trumps Latest Approval Rating 
Plummets: 

“61% Of Voters Expressed The 
Sentiment That Trump Is Dishonest” 
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“59% Said They Thought He Didn’t Care 
About The Average American” 

 
5/11/17 BY TIM MARCIN, Newsweek 
 
It’s no secret President Donald Trump isn’t popular with the majority of Americans, but a 
new poll this week shows he is beginning to lose some of the demographics that thrust 
him into the White House. 
 
The Quinnipiac University survey found that just 36 percent of voters approve of the job 
Trump is doing, while 58 percent disapprove. That’s a "near-record" negative rating and 
a drop from last month, the poll noted. 
 
In its April 19 poll, Quinnipiac University found Trump’s approval rating stood at 40 
percent with 56 percent disapproving. 
 
Perhaps even more troubling for the president: The folks who made up his base in 
November’s election appear to be growing weary.  White voters are fleeing. 
 
In the latest survey, 61 percent of voters expressed the sentiment that Trump is 
dishonest, while 59 percent said they thought he didn’t care about the average American 
and 66 percent thought he wasn’t level-headed. 
 
"There is no way to spin or sugarcoat these sagging numbers," said Tim Malloy, 
assistant director of the Quinnipiac University Poll, in a statement. 
 
"The erosion of white men, white voters without college degrees and independent voters, 
the declaration by voters that President Donald Trump’s first 100 days were mainly a 
failure and deepening concerns about Trump’s honesty, intelligence and level 
headedness are red flags that the administration simply can’t brush away." 
 
The Quinnipiac survey polled 1,078 voters over the phone from May 4 through May 9. 
The poll had a margin of error of plus or minus three percentage points. 
 
Trump’s approval rating has mostly hovered around 40 percent recently—the weighted 
average from data-focused website FiveThirtyEight had him at 41.3 percent Thursday—
but his support has seemingly taken a dip in the wake of Republicans in the House of 
Representatives passing the American Health Care Act, otherwise known as Trumpcare. 
A Morning Consult/Politico survey released Wednesday found the president’s approval 
rating dipped four percentage points, to 44 percent, after the passage of the bill, which 
just 38 percent of respondents supported 
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AFGHANISTAN WAR REPORTS 
 
 

Mourning A Soldier 

 
Army Staff Sgt. Mark De Alencar 

 
May 10, 2017 Michael E. Miller, Washington Post 
 
They had followed him across the country and back, from one military base to another. 
 
On Wednesday, Army Staff Sgt. Mark De Alencar’s wife and five children followed him 
one last time: six figures, dressed in black, walking behind the caisson that carried his 
casket through Arlington National Cemetery. 
 
As men in uniform lifted the flag-draped casket off the back of the horse-drawn carriage 
and marched across the grass, the fallen soldier’s 4-year-old son raised a small hand in 
salute. 
 
De Alencar, 37, was killed April 8 when his Special Forces unit clashed with Islamic 
State fighters in eastern Afghanistan. 
 
He was the first American killed in combat in Afghanistan in more than four months. Now 
his death could mark the beginning of a new stage in America’s longest war. 
 
Five days after he died, U.S. forces dropped a 22,000-pound explosive - nicknamed "the 
mother of all bombs" - near where De Alencar was shot. Since then, two more American 
soldiers have been killed fighting the Islamic State in the same area. 
 
De Alencar’s burial comes as the Trump administration weighs a re-escalation of the war 
in Afghanistan, which has lasted more than 15 years and claimed the lives of 2,216 U.S. 
service members.  The president has declined to say whether he personally ordered the 
use of one of the largest non-nuclear bombs in the U.S. arsenal, or whether its use was 
a response to De Alencar’s death. 
 
But De Alencar’s relatives said they viewed the bombing as a show of support from 
Trump, and a sign that a forgotten war may be a priority again.  "It gave me reassurance 



that our president is going to put it out there that when it’s one of our own killed, we are 
going to retaliate," said De Alencar’s wife, Natasha.  "It’s about time," added his father, 
Joao. "We’ve been too soft for too many years." 
 
Mark De Alencar always dreamed of joining the Special Forces. The only surprise was 
how long it took him. 
 
De Alencar grew up on a military base in Germany, where his Brazilian-born father was 
stationed with the U.S. Army. Once, when he was about 10 and on vacation on the 
French Riviera, De Alencar and another boy took a boat and began paddling into the 
Mediterranean. His parents called the police, but the boys were rescued by a boat full of 
Italian tourists. 
 
"It was an adventure for him," Joao De Alencar recalled.  "He always did things like that," 
said his mother, Maria. "But he was never scared." 
 
When his family moved to Edgewood, Maryland, he was 12 and walked around the 
neighborhood in a bright yellow-and-green Brazil jersey, kicking a soccer ball.  "He’d 
always try to get us to play soccer with him," recalled Michael Page, 38, who lived a few 
blocks away. "We were like, ‘C’mon, Mark. Play basketball.’ " 
 
As a teen, De Alencar grew to be over six feet tall. His size came in handy playing 
football for Joppatowne High School, and for navigating a sometimes-dangerous 
neighborhood. 
 
"Mark never instigated confrontation, but he would never back down from it," Page said. 
 
One night in 1997, Page was stabbed three times after a basketball game in the local 
park. 
 
"I could hear the air slurping through my chest," he said. As he stumbled home, Page 
spotted De Alencar, who raced to Page’s house and called an ambulance, then returned 
to take care of Page until it arrived. 
 
"I always wonder how life would have turned out if I hadn’t run into him that night," Page 
recalled. "He saved my life." 
 
De Alencar wanted to join the Army after graduating from Joppatowne in 1998, but an 
arrest for marijuana possession got in the way, according to his father, then a Baltimore 
police officer. 
 
De Alencar found work as a carpenter, and he became a single father when his girlfriend 
committed suicide, leaving him with a young son. 
 
Natasha was also a single parent, with two young children. She and Mark had been 
friends in high school. They reconnected in 2003 when De Alencar helped fix her 
mother’s car, began dating and married several years later. 
 
De Alencar earned a good income during the housing boom but always talked about 
trying again to enlist. When the housing market collapsed in 2009, he met with an Army 



recruiter. This time, De Alencar was accepted. He began boot camp in July 2009, 
deployed to Iraq a year later, then began training to try out for the Army Rangers. 
 
In 2015, after Natasha had given birth to their fifth child, the family moved from a base in 
Hawaiito Fort Bragg, N.C., so that De Alencar could complete the grueling, 18-month 
Special Forces’ qualification course. 
 
Natasha worried about her husband’s safety but didn’t want to stand in his way. 
 
"As a wife, you don’t want to be the roadblock keeping someone from doing what they 
want to do," she said. "He always reassured me and the kids that it would be OK." 
 
Before De Alencar flew to Afghanistan on Feb. 11, he promised his 17-year-old 
daughter, Octavia, that he would be back in time to see her graduate on May 25. By 
then, they were living at Eglin Air Force Base in Florida. 
 
At the airport, Natasha needled him, as she always did before he went away. 
 
"Don’t die," she said. "Come back, OK?" 
 
The last time she spoke to him was March 31, the day before his 37th birthday. They 
talked about house shopping together when he returned. Then he said he was about to 
go on a mission and wouldn’t be able to call for a while. 
 
A week later, Natasha, her mother and the children had just returned from soccer 
practice when her 13-year-old daughter, Tatiyana, burst through the front door. She had 
been retrieving her headphones from the car when she spotted two men in uniforms 
walking toward the house. 
 
Octavia peered outside and then raced upstairs, crying. 
 
"Mom, you need to come here," she said. "Two men are at the door like when something 
bad happens in the movies." 
 
"I literally froze," Natasha recalled. When she finally was able to force herself to walk 
downstairs, the two Army men told her that her husband had been killed. 
 
"I’ll never forget those super white, clean gloves, or the expressionless look on their 
faces," she said. 
 
When her 15-year-old son, Rodrigo, realized what had happened, he hurled a television 
remote against the wall. Natasha asked her mother to break the news to her youngest 
son, Marcos. 
 
"Your daddy went to heaven," Yolanda Thornton told the 4-year-old. 
 
Two days later, the family was present when De Alencar’s remains were removed from 
the plane at Dover Air Force Base in Delaware. 
 



"That’s when it sank in for me," Octavia said. Her father wouldn’t be able to watch her 
graduate, as he had promised. They wouldn’t go to Disneyland together as they had 
planned. 
 
For Natasha, the pain comes in waves. It ebbs when she is with her children, only to rise 
when she is alone. 
 
"Nighttime is the worst," she said. 
 
On Monday, exactly a month after De Alencar’s death, his body lay in a white-lined 
casket in an Abingdon, Md., funeral home. On his medal-decorated chest lay a photo of 
him and Natasha inscribed with the words: "Our love." Beside his head lay a blue Brazil 
soccer jersey. 
 
"He wore this one all the time," Rodrigo said, staring down at his father, who still wore a 
patchy Special Forces beard. 
 
Marcos, not yet in kindergarten, played with his cousins on a nearby couch. 
 
"I’m gonna look at my dad," he announced at one point, climbing up onto a bench beside 
the coffin, then quickly running away. 
 
"That’s creepy," he said. 
 
On Wednesday, Marcos sat between his two older sisters, swinging his feet as a military 
chaplain spoke about sacrifice. He covered his ears as a firing party unleashed three 
volleys into the cloud-dappled sky. 
 
A military band played "America the Beautiful" as soldiers folded the flag that had draped 
the silver casket. Army Brig. Gen. Antonio Fletcher presented the flag to Natasha De 
Alencar, who clutched it to her chest as she wept behind black sunglasses. 
 
Fletcher then gave flags to De Alencar’s children, kneeling low to give Marcos his before 
patting the boy solemnly on the head. 
 
 

POLITICIANS REFUSE TO HALT THE 
BLOODSHED 

 

THE TROOPS HAVE THE POWER TO STOP THE 
WAR 

 
 

Security In Afghanistan Likely To Get 
Worse Says U.S. Intel Chief: 



“The Government Can Claim To Control 
Or Influence Only 57% Of The Country” 

 
May 11, 2017 By Idrees Ali, Reuters [Excerpts] 
 
The security situation in Afghanistan will further deteriorate even if there is a modest 
increase in U.S. military support for the war-torn country, the top U.S. intelligence official 
said on Thursday, as President Donald Trump’s administration weighs sending more 
forces to Afghanistan. 
 
Afghan army units are pulling back, and in some cases have been forced to abandon 
more scattered and rural bases, and the government can claim to control or influence 
only 57 percent of the country, according to U.S. military estimates from earlier this year. 
 
Some U.S. officials said they questioned the benefit of sending more troops to 
Afghanistan because any politically palatable number would not be enough to turn the 
tide, much less create stability and security. To date, more than 2,300 Americans have 
been killed and over 17,000 wounded. 
 
President Ashraf Ghani’s U.S.-backed government remains plagued by corruption and 
divided by factions loyal to political strongmen whose armed supporters often are 
motivated by ethnic, family, and regional loyalties. 
 

 

“It Feels Like Groundhog Day” 
US Marines Return To Helmand 

Province: 
“Of The Province’s 14 Districts, Only 
Two Are Firmly Under Government 

Control” 
“Deep Seated Corruption That Has 

Gutted Finances And Morale” 
 
30 April 2017 Sune Engel Rasmussen in Camp Shorab, The Guardian [Excerpts] 
 
When thousands of US Marines flooded into Helmand eight years ago, they 
demonstrated Barack Obama’s resolve to quash the Taliban once and for all and leave a 
peaceful province for Afghans to take over. 
 



Two years after the US flag was lowered, however, the Marines are back, in a sign that 
things turned out rather differently. 
 
“It feels like Groundhog Day,” said Staff Sergeant Robin Spotts, on his third Helmand 
deployment. About half of the 300 Marines who have arrived over the past two weeks 
have served in Helmand before. Even the flag raised in a ceremony on Saturday was the 
same, having been kept at the Pentagon since October 2014. 
 

 
US Marines at a flag-raising ceremony at the renamed Camp Shorab in Helmand. Photograph: 

Sune Engel Rasmussen for the Guardian 

 
The situation now is worse than when they left.  Areas where the US military had 
outposts and walked the bazaars are now inaccessible even for Afghan forces. Of the 
province’s 14 districts, only two are firmly under government control. 
 
In Marjah, seized in one of the largest operations of the war in 2010, the district centre 
receives provisions from the air. 
 
Sangin, the deadliest district in the country for both US Marines and British troops, fell to 
the Taliban again in March, though US forces downplayed the moment. 
 
The Taliban are now encroaching on the provincial capital, Lashkar Gah, and have 
periodically managed to block the main highway to Kandahar. 
 
The Afghan army’s 215th Corps in Helmand, with whom the US marines will be working, 
struggles not only with record-high casualties but deep seated corruption that has gutted 
finances and morale. 
 

 

Not All Teachers Need Coercing: 
“Some Are Themselves Active 

Members Of The Taliban, Swapping 



Chalk For Kalashnikovs After 
Completing The Day’s Lessons” 
“They Take Their Salary From The 

Afghan Government, Whose Armed 
Forces They Then Fight On The 

Battlefield” 
 
9 May 2017 Sune Engel Rasmussen in Kabul, The Guardian [Excerpts] 
 
When Afghan teachers are lobbied to give good marks to mediocre students, the 
pressure does not necessarily come from disgruntled parents. Often it comes from the 
Taliban. 
 
In areas of eastern Afghanistan, militants intimidate teachers to let older boys who fight 
with the Taliban pass exams despite lackluster performances, according to education 
experts working in the region. 
 
They say insurgents also pressure teachers not to record the absence of students who 
spend much of their time on the frontline. 
 
Not all teachers need coercing.  Some are themselves active members of the Taliban, 
swapping chalk for Kalashnikovs after completing the day’s lessons. They take their 
salary from the Afghan government, whose armed forces they then fight on the 
battlefield. 
 
“The Taliban are actively interfering in the education system,” said one educator who 
has trained teachers in Kunar province. In areas under heavy Taliban influence, he says, 
insurgents introduce their own members as teachers, threatening to close government 
schools if they do not comply. 
 
Some of the teachers he trained were Taliban fighters, in effect on the government 
payroll, who turned up at school carrying weapons. “In the afternoon, they went back to 
fight the government,” the educator said. 
 
The Taliban do not appear to issue their own curricula, but they inspect course material. 
In Logar province they have reportedly torn pages from books that portrayed historical 
figures in a light they disagreed with, casting progressive leaders as heroes and 
conservatives as foes. 
 
Taliban teachers may also add bits to courses, particularly about holy war, said an 
education expert who works in the east. “They suspect the schools are teaching anti-
Taliban propaganda,” he said. 
 



The infiltration of the educational system puts the Afghan government in a dilemma: see 
schools close or ensure that children receive some form of education. The Afghan 
ministry of education denied that any teachers on its payroll were affiliated with the 
Taliban. 
 
Sayed Jamal, who heads the education department in Kunar, said: “It is up to the 
intelligence service to find out if any teachers are Taliban. So far, nobody has informed 
me that they are.” But there is no doubt that there are many complicated villages in 
Kunar, and some of them are out of the government’s control. 
 
Accepting Taliban presence in schools has political consequences, making the Taliban 
de facto providers of a service funded by the Afghan government. 
 
In Kohistanat district in the northern Sar-e Pul province, which has been under insurgent 
control for 18 months, Taliban officials head the education as well as health, religious 
study and security departments. 
 
According to western security analysts, the officials, picked by the Taliban leadership in 
Pakistan, keep boys’ schools open, while inspecting curricula to comply with their 
values. Teacher salaries are collected monthly from the provincial capital. In addition, 
the insurgents tax salaries and harvests. 
 
As an organisation intent on showing capacity for governance, the Taliban have 
appointed shadow ministers, including for education, health, religion. 
 
“It has restructured itself as a shadow state. In that sense the Taliban needs to deliver a 
certain level of services in the areas they control,” said Timor Sharan, the Kabul-based 
analyst for the International Crisis Group. 
 
The Taliban derive some authority from their role as mediators. In rural areas, the 
Taliban set up mobile courts. While Taliban legal rule is often harsher on women and 
doles out corporal punishment, it is sometimes seen as more accessible and less corrupt 
than the governmental justice system. 
 
This type of latent influence adds nuance to official statistics of the Taliban’s 
geographical strength. The US military claims the Taliban control only eight of 
Afghanistan’s roughly 400 districts, and “influence” another 25. 
 
Some observers dispute those numbers as downplaying the Taliban’s reach. Either way, 
data mapping military control does not necessarily capture the wield of soft power. 
 

 
 

SOMALIA WAR REPORTS 
 
 

Militants Kill Senior Somali Intelligence 
Officer Outside His Home 



 
April 27, 2017 Reuters 
 
MOGADISHU — 
 
Somalia’s al Shabaab militants shot and killed a senior national intelligence officer in 
front of his house in the capital Mogadishu on Thursday, police and militants said, in the 
latest such incident by the group. 
 
The security officer, who was involved in conducting security operations against the 
group, was sitting in front of his house without his body guards when armed militants 
shot him to death, police officer Ibrahim Nur said. 
 
“We are behind the killing of the national security general called Mohamud Haji Ali,” 
Abdiasis Abu Musab, al Shabaab’s military operation spokesman, told Reuters 
Thursday. Nur confirmed that and said the gunmen escaped. 
 
“Police and security forces reached the scene later to investigate and pursue the 
militants.  It is difficult to prevent death — the officer had no guards with him when he 
was killed,” Nur told Reuters. 
 

 
 

POLICE WAR REPORTS 
 
 

“The Family Insists That Brown 
Did Not Pose A Threat To Any 

Police Officer When He Was Shot 
To Death” 

“He Was Also At Least 15 Feet Away 
From The Closest Officer, His Family 

Said” 
“After Brown Was Shot, Several Officers 
On The Scene Assured His Family That 

They Had Used Rubber Bullets And That 
Brown Was Not Seriously Injured” 



 
Armond Jairon Brown’s father, Armond Brown and mother Jaronet Whitaker Vital sit 
together with memorabilia of their son, Wednesday, April 19, 2017. Jairon was killed by 
the Kenner police earlier this year.  His family just sued the department. (Photo by Ted 
Jackson, NOLA.com.  The Times-Picayune) 
 
April 25, 2017 By Richard A. Webster, The Times-Picayune 
 
To his family, there were two Armond Jairon Browns. 
 
There was the young man who, through the first 22 years of his life, appeared happy, 
healthy and well-adjusted.  He was a gifted and talented student, his family said, a 
standout basketball player at Metairie’s Grace King High School, and a religious person 
whose natural joy could lift anyone within arm’s reach. 
 
Then there was the other Brown, the one who returned home in 2014 after nearly a year 
at a religious retreat near Charleston, S.C.  
 
Family members said they don’t know much about his time there, except that he shared 
a troubled relationship with a woman who he married and divorced in the span of four 
months.  When Brown returned home, he was a completely different person, family 
members said.  He was depressed, withdrawn and exhibiting signs of mental illness. 
 
Nearly three years later, Brown was dead, fatally shot Jan. 23 by Kenner police outside 
his father’s home in the 300 block of Webster Street, following a four-hour standoff. 
 
The tragic end to a life that once showed so much promise has left Brown’s family 
reeling as they search for answers.  His mother, Jaronet Whitaker Vital, collapsed into 
tears as she relived the moment a University Medical Center doctor said her son was 
"dead on arrival." 
 
"‘He expired.’ That’s what she said. ‘He expired,’" Vital recalled, seated at the dining 
room table in her Webster Street home three blocks from the home where Brown was 
shot. "I asked, ‘Can I see my child.’ They told me he was gone already, that the coroner 



had picked him up. I didn’t have a chance ... oh Jesus," she cried out, sobbing and 
unable to continue the interview. 
 
Police and Brown’s family have given conflicting accounts of the events leading up to his 
death, which is also the subject of an $8.5 million wrongful death lawsuit the family filed 
April 13 against the Kenner Police Department and the city. 
 
Kenner Police Chief Michael Glaser declined an interview request, citing the pending 
litigation.  He previously said that Brown’s brother called law enforcement for assistance, 
saying that Brown, 25, had stopped taking his medication and threatened him with a 
knife. When officers arrived at 11:37 a.m., Brown had locked himself inside of his 
father’s home, where he lived with his brother and father, Armond Brown. 
 
During the next four hours, officers attempted to restrain Brown unsuccessfully with non-
lethal methods, including a Taser stun gun, rubber-like ammunition and tear gas, Glaser 
said. They were forced to use live rounds when Brown, holding two knives, came out of 
the house and advanced within three feet of an officer, he said. 
 
Brown’s family disputes the police account. Though police released photographs to The 
Advocate showing what authorities say were the steak knife and the 13-inch blade 
Brown was holding, his parents said their son didn’t have any knives in his hands when 
tear gas forced him from the house.  Other relatives, speaking a day after the shooting, 
said Brown was only holding butter knives. In his recent suit, the family said Brown had 
no knives at all. 
 
The family also insists that Brown did not pose a threat to any police officer when he was 
shot to death. He was standing in the front lawn, which is surrounded by a 7-foot tall 
brick wall with a wrought iron gate door -- which was locked at the time.  He was also at 
least 15 feet away from the closest officer, his family said. 
 
Kenner police do not wear body cameras so there is no video footage of the incident, 
said Lt. Brian McGregor, who serves as the department’s spokesman and as the 
supervisor of the criminal investigation division, narcotics and crime scenes. The only 
police cars equipped with cameras are those in the traffic division, he said. 
 
 

“After Brown Was Shot, Several Officers On The Scene Assured His Family 
That They Had Used Rubber Bullets And That Brown Was Not Seriously 

Injured” 
 
After Brown was shot, several officers on the scene assured his family that they 
had used rubber bullets and that Brown was not seriously injured, his father said.  
 
The officers also asked the family to go to the police station to provide a statement about 
Brown’s mental health issues, Armond Brown said. 
 
"They told me to come make a statement because it would really help Jairon to get 
the help he needs," Armond Brown said. "We had no idea he was deceased." 
 



"We were in the police station giving statements about his behavior and not one 
soul in there said Jairon was shot or anything," Joshua Brown added. 
 
Vital said she asked the officers at the police station where they had taken her son, but 
no one would give her an answer. 
 
"I was escorted out. (An officer) walks me out," she remembered. "He’s patting me (on 
the back) and I’m like, ‘when are y’all going to tell me where my child is?’ And he tells 
me that the ‘big man’ is going to call and tell me." She said she thought the "big man" 
meant the police chief. 
 
Vital waited in the parking lot of the police station for nearly an hour, but never heard 
back from Glaser or anyone with the department, she said. She decided then to call 
University Medical Center. The person who answered said that her son had been 
admitted to the hospital, so that’s where Vital went. And that’s when she found out her 
son was dead, more than two hours after he had been shot. 
 
Meanwhile, Josh said he had left the police station for his girlfriend’s house in New 
Orleans East where, later that evening, around 7:30 p.m., he got a call from the coroner. 
 
"He said, ‘I’m sorry for your loss.’  And I’m like, no, Jairon’s on the way to the hospital. I 
appreciate your call. I’m so naive, thinking they’re going to tell me what hospital they 
committed Jairon to. The last thing I’m expecting is for you to tell me he’s not here no 
more." 
 
From an early age, Vital said, Brown showed a strong interest in religion. On a table in 
her living room is one of his Bibles, opened to his favorite section, the writings of 
Jeremiah, also known as the "weeping prophet." At the top of the page, Brown had 
written in blue pen, "I am about my Father’s business." 
 
His family was not surprised when Brown told them in 2013 that he would be joining 
members of the New Wine Christian Fellowship, from LaPlace, in attending a retreat at 
the Harvest Center Church in Ladson, S.C 
 
There wasn’t much cause for his family to worry.  Up until that point in his life, Brown had 
excelled at everything he set out to accomplish, they said. He attended Southeastern 
Louisiana University in Hammond for two years, but left to pursue religion studies. 
 
While attending the retreat, Brown married a woman he recently met. His family traveled 
to South Carolina for the wedding and said that he never seemed happier. But it wouldn’t 
last.  Four months later, the marriage was over and Brown was back at home in Kenner, 
living with his father and brother on Webster Street. 
 
His parents said Brown didn’t talk about what happened, or what caused him to return 
home, and they didn’t press him for details. But the change in their son’s demeanor was 
disturbing. 
 
"It was a struggle for him," Armond Brown said. "He was depressed. He was withdrawn. 
Just bad times.  We sent him to several mental hospitals to try and get him some help. 
He would come out and he would do well and eventually he’d go back into his 
depression." 



 
Brown’s ex-wife could not be reached for comment. Harvest Center Church did not 
return calls seeking comment and New Wine Christian Fellowship did not immediately 
respond. 
 
Brown was eventually diagnosed with bi-polar disorder and schizophrenia, after which 
his "episodes," as his father calls them, grew more frequent. But Brown often refused to 
take his medication. 
 
"He said it made him a zombie," Vital said. "He said to me, ‘Momma, you take it.’ I even 
had an intervention here.  But he explained that the medication would just completely 
knock him out for days. He felt like (the doctors) were experimenting on him.  He just felt 
like certain medications could affect you just as worse as it could help you." 
 
Since there are limited mental health resources in the New Orleans area, the family said 
they were forced to rely on the police, calling them for assistance when Brown’s 
behavior became worrisome. They knew that if Brown was taken into custody, he would 
be required to spend at least two weeks at a mental health facility, where he would have 
to take his medications. 
 
Glaser said police were called 22 times to the residence since January 2015. 
 
"Every time they came out, it wouldn’t be no problem," Armond Brown said of the police. 
"He was never violent towards them.  He would just get on the stretcher. He’d go 
peacefully. I know in the hospital they would give him medicine to calm him down. But as 
the medicine wears off he would go into another episode.  I don’t know if he knew. He’d 
say there’s nothing wrong with him." 
 
Though the final years of his life were troubled, Brown apparently had not given up on 
himself. He had reapplied to Southeastern University, his family said. A letter from the 
school came in the mail after his death, letting him know he had been accepted. 
 
"I cried," Armond said when he opened the letter. "I just hurt too much." 
 
When Brown had what would prove to be his last episode in January, it was his brother 
who made the call to police, the first time he had ever done so. It is a decision that 
haunts him. 
 
"The whole point of the call was to get him on a stretcher and get him to a hospital," 
Joshua Brown said, his voice breaking. "To this day, I feel bad even calling the police. I 
feel like I let him down. I was thinking that they’re going to get help for him, not knowing 
this would be the last time I ever see this dude breathing." 
 

 

Man Gets 18-Year Prison Sentence For 
Weed 

 
May 9, 2017 By Justin Gardner, The Free Thought Project [Excerpts] 
 



Louisiana just proved how cruel the drug war can be, as the state’s Supreme Court 
upheld an 18-year prison sentence without possibility of parole – for possessing 18 
grams of cannabis. 
 
In 2014, Gary Howard was convicted of “marijuana possession with intent to distribute” 
and a Caddo parish judge handed down the harsh sentence, labeling him as a “habitual 
offender” for a 2008 firearm possession conviction. 
 
The Supreme Court was convinced that the ‘intent to distribute’ charge was justified 
because Howard had the pot in five separate bags, even though “a prosecution expert 
conceded the marijuana could have been for Howard’s personal use” and 
“acknowledged it was possible the marijuana was purchased in the same form that 
police found it.” 
 
Chief Justice Bernette Johnson blasted the “outrageous” judgment of her colleagues, 
who made an arbitrary decision to ruin Howard’s life. 
 
“As a practical matter, in light of the inconsequential amount of marijuana found, 
imprisoning defendant for this extreme length of time at a cost of about $23,000 per year 
(costing our state over $400,000 in total) provides little societal value and only serves to 
further burden our financially strapped state and its tax payers,” wrote Johnson. 
 
“Legally, the state proved nothing more than simple possession of marijuana in this 
case.” 
 
Johnson went on to suggest that authorities “overreacted” because a firearm was found 
during Howard’s arrest, resulting in a charge for which he was later acquitted. 
 
The fact that, in one state a person can be locked in a cage for 18 years for possessing 
a plant, while in other states a person can go to a store and legally buy the same amount 
of the plant, underscores a broken, thoroughly corrupt system. 
 
To this day, federal government maintains cannabis as a Schedule 1 narcotic, and we 
see prohibition serving the same goals. 
 
The Louisiana Supreme Court decision shows that the Reefer Madness mentality is alive 
and well in the cretins that inhabit the halls of ‘justice.’ Even as 60 percent of Americans 
now think recreational cannabis should be legal, arbiters of ‘justice’ have no reservations 
about locking people in cages for possessing said plant. 
 
The silver lining is that judges such as Bernette Johnson are not afraid to point out the 
absurdity of these sentences, which can only be called a war on people. 
 

 

How One California Police 
Officer’s Thirst For Brutality Has 

Crashed Into The Life Of Yet 



Another Innocent Member Of The 
Public. 

“Malanado Didn’t Know Yet, But He 
Wasn’t Masso’s First Victim” 

“Masso Had A History Even Before The 
Blueford Murder” 

 
Killer cop Miguel Masso photographed by activists in downtown Oakland (Occupy 

Oakland) 
 
April 3, 2017 by Todd Chretien, Socialist Worker 
 
On January 28, 2017, Hollister Police Department officer Miguel Masso stopped Earl 
Malanado as he was driving home from a friend’s house in this central California town. 
Masso claimed that Malanado’s license plates didn’t match his car’s description, 
although he subsequently retracted the accusation. 
 
Masso then issued Malanado citations for an out-of-date registration and for not having a 
paper copy of his proof of insurance in the car. When Malanado protested against the 
false reason given for the initial stop and stated that he had a First Amendment right to 
speak up for himself, Masso became agitated and announced that he was placing 
Malanado under arrest--supposedly for "interfering with a police investigation." He 
ordered Malanado to exit the vehicle. 
 
In an interview with Socialist Worker, Malanado describes what happens next. 
 
“I didn’t even get a chance to get out of my car and stand up.  Masso grabbed my right 
hand in a submission hold, you know, like cops do, and knocked my phone, which was 



still recording, out of my hand. He really sent it flying.  His attack was immediate and 
vicious, like a Ninja. I went to the ground like a rag doll.” 
 
Malanado didn’t know yet, but he wasn’t Masso’s first victim. 
 
On May 6, 2012, Masso shot and killed 18-year-old African American high school 
student Alan Blueford in East Oakland after racially profiling him and two friends.  Masso 
later claimed that he had Post-Traumatic Stress Syndrome from his time in Iraq and had 
"gone into autopilot" as he pursued Blueford. 
 
Masso initially claimed that Blueford had shot him, but it was quickly learned that Masso 
shot himself in the foot in addition to fatally shooting Blueford. 
 
Masso had a history even before the Blueford murder. 
 
In 2007, Rafael Santiago filed a lawsuit against Masso and three other New York 
City Police officers for beating and repeatedly using a Taser on him while in 
custody. After the case was settled, Masso resigned from the NYPD and took a job 
as an officer in Oakland. 
 
After Masso killed their son, Alan Blueford’s parents Jeralynn and Adam spearheaded a 
high-profile activist movement organized under the name JAB--Justice for Alan Blueford. 
For months, community members and anti-police brutality activists occupied City Council 
meetings and brought business as usual to a halt. 
 
The case made headlines in Oakland for more than two years. Although the Alameda 
County district attorney refused to press charges against Masso, the city of Oakland 
subsequently paid a settlement in a civil lawsuit filed by the Blueford family. 
 
As was the case in New York, Masso resigned under pressure--only to be hired by 
a new department in August 2014, this time in Hollister, just 80 miles south of 
Oakland. 
 
If the Hollister Police Department was aware of Masso’s history of abuse, Malanado was 
not.  Masso dragged the 50-year-old man from his car on January 28, and things quickly 
escalated out of control. Malanado said: 
 
“Masso pinned my hands behind my back and threw me to the ground.  While I was 
falling, he pulled my jacket up over my head so it was covering my face.  I have COPD, 
which means I have trouble breathing. So he had my hands pinned behind me, with his 
left knee on the back of my knees and his right knee on my right arm, pushing my face 
into the ground, with my jacket covering my mouth and nose. 
 
“‘I kept yelling, ‘I can’t breathe, my medication is in my jacket. I can’t breathe.’  I started 
to panic and just kept screaming, ‘I can’t breathe.’" 
 
Luckily for Malanado, another Hollister officer arrived on the scene and took him into 
custody.  "All I could think was that I wanted to get into the sheriff’s custody and away 
from Masso," said Malanado.  "When the second cop put me in his patrol car I told him I 
thought Masso was crazy." 
 



Malanado was then taken to jail and processed by the sheriff’s department.  At no point 
along the way was he read his Miranda rights, and neither the Hollister Police nor the 
sheriff’s departments took Malanado to the hospital for medical treatment. 
 
Upon being released into his family’s custody after midnight, Malanado returned home 
briefly and then went to the hospital. While at the hospital, a Hollister police officer 
entered Malanado’s room and questioned him about the encounter with Masso. 
 
"He just kept smirking and implying that everything was my fault," explained 
Malanado. Although no longer under arrest, the officer refused to leave Malanado 
alone. Hospital medical and security personnel eventually had to insist the officer 
exit the room. 
 
Nearly two months later, Malanado is still feeling the effects of the assault. 
 
“My injuries are mostly bruises, on my knees and especially my right elbow.  There were 
cuts on my wrist, and I had an x-ray of my elbow to see if there was a fracture. Now I 
have pains in my knee. I have a lot of trouble sleeping too. Not so much because of the 
physical pain, but because of the mental anguish. It’s all I can think about so I can’t 
sleep. I keep wondering, ‘What did I do? Why me? Why do I deserve this?’" 
 
Soon after Malanado’s ordeal, a family member Googled Masso’s name and learned 
about the Blueford case.  Malanado quickly reached out to Alan Blueford’s parents to 
find out what had happened in Oakland.  He became convinced that he had to speak 
out: 
 
“I thought, ‘That’s strike three.’ Of course, what he did to Alan was much worse than 
what he did to me, but somebody has to put a stop to this. I know some people are 
scared or don’t have the means to speak out. But it’s just not right. 
 
“I’m not out to ruin the guy’s life, but he can’t be in a position to have power over people. 
There’s clearly a pattern here. I don’t believe he’s in police work to try to help people.” 
 

 

Police Violence Against Native 
Americans In Arizona: 

“Tsingine, Was Shot Five Times 
By Shipley On Easter Sunday, 

2016, After Allegedly Shoplifting” 
“Shipley Began Yelling, ‘Stop 

Resisting!’ Benally Then Thought The 



Officer Pulled Out His Taser. It Was A 
Rapid Fire, Five Times” 

“This Racism And Violence Committed 
Towards Native People Is Systemic" 

 
Apr 27, 2017 By Creede Newton, Al Jazeera Media Network 
 
Winslow, Arizona, United States –  
 
On a cool evening in March, a group of Navajo gathered in front of the police department 
in Winslow, Arizona, holding signs, carrying candles, and demanding justice. 
 
It was March 27, one year since 27-year-old Navajo mother Loreal Tsingine was shot 
dead by Winslow police officer Austin Shipley. 
 
Tsingine, was shot five times by Shipley on Easter Sunday, 2016, after allegedly 
shoplifting from a local Circle K shop. 
 
Brandon Benallie, a Navajo member of the national council of The Red Nation, a 
countrywide organisation of Native and non-Native activists, teachers, students and 
community organisers that advocates for Native American rights was at the 
demonstration.  
 
He says that after Tsingine was killed in the afternoon, her body was left in the pavement 
until six the next morning. 
 
"From a Native perspective, you have to take care of the memory of that person. 
Essentially, she’s supposed to be respectfully remembered before the sun sets," 
Benallie says. "To leave her out there for over 12 hours as they waited for a coroner to 
arrive … it was extremely disheartening and disturbing that they allowed that to happen." 
 
For Benallie, Tsingine’s death, and the deaths of 23 other Native Americans at the 
hands of police in 2016, is "a sad affirmation that this racism and violence committed 
towards Native people is systemic". 
 
Native Americans, who make up 5.2 million or 1.7 percent of the country’s population, 
are the only group that saw a rise in deaths due to police shootings, from 13 in 2015 to 
24 in 2016, according to the Guardian’s The Counted. 
 
In 2015, Native American deaths were measured as 5.49 per one million people. Blacks 
killed by police were 7.69 per million. Last year, the number for blacks was 6.66 per one 
million, while the number for Native Americans rose to 10.13 per million.  Every other 
racial group saw a decrease, including those whose race is listed as "other". 
 



"These numbers are so terrible," Benallie says. "This isn’t the oppression Olympics. 
There’s no gold medal for who gets killed more by police. When you look at the Latino, 
black and Native communities, they’re all suffering." 
 
In 2016, six Native Americans were killed by police in southwest Arizona, the state that 
is home to the majority of the Navajo Nation and where the highest number of these 
killings occurred. 
 
Benallie says the struggles of Native Americans must be viewed through the lens of 
"settler-colonialism", likening their situation to that of the illegal Israeli occupation of 
Palestinian land. 
 
The Navajo Nation is a 71,000 square kilometre semi-autonomous territory spanning 
three separate US states and essentially serving as a reservation, with "border towns" 
like Winslow and nearby Flagstaff lying on its edges.  These border towns have served 
as guard stations to control the Navajo, Benallie says, with police as the "tools of the 
settler-colonial process". 
 
Of the six Native Americans killed by police in Arizona last year, Tsingine’s case was the 
most controversial. It sparked outrage in the Native community. 
 
In Shipley’s bodycam footage, Tsingine can be seen brandishing a pair of scissors. 
 
Ryanle Benally, a Winslow resident who saw Shipley fire, told the local daily 
newspaper, the Arizona Republic, that when the officer confronted Tsignine, he 
grabbed her and her "whole body flew over and slammed into the concrete".  He 
says he saw Shipley pin her to the ground with his knee and at that point thought 
she was going to be arrested. 
 
"That should have been it," he said. 
 
Shipley began yelling, "Stop resisting!" Benally then thought the officer pulled out 
his taser. 
 
"It wasn’t.  It was a rapid fire, five times," the witness said. 
 
It was later revealed that Tsingine had a history of mental illness and previous 
altercations with the police. 
 
Shipley also had a history of using excessive force and falsifying records, 
according to documents from the Arizona Republic’s investigation into his 
employment record. 
 
Shipley had drawn his gun on suspects five times, his Taser four times - including once 
on a teenage girl with her back turned to him, and used physical force at least three 
times.  He had been an officer for three years. 
 
For Native and non-Native residents of Winslow, the revelation of Shipley’s employment 
history raised questions about whether he was qualified to be a police officer. 
 



In July, Maricopa County lawyer Bill Montgomery announced that after a four-month 
internal investigation, Shipley had been cleared of any criminal conduct and wouldn’t be 
charged. In October, Shipley, who went on paid leave shortly after killing Tsingine, 
resigned after being presented with the results of a separate internal investigation. 
 
Benallie and others question why there wasn’t enough evidence for charges, but enough 
to spur Shipley’s resignation. 
 
Montgomery told Al Jazeera that the investigations varied greatly: "An internal affairs 
investigation and an employment decision do not have the same burdens of proof." 
 
Aside from his work in the Red Nation, Benallie helped form the group Bordertown 
Justice Coalition, which aims to end police violence against his community. The coalition 
also started the "Justice for Loreal" movement to support Tsingine’s family, with whom 
they work closely. 
 
Benallie says that while representatives of the Winslow Police Department travelled to 
the Navajo Nation to speak with her family, there have been "no meaningful 
reconciliation efforts". 
 
He says Tsingine’s murder was not "a random act of violence against Native people". 
Police violence, Benallie points out, "doesn’t begin when someone dies". 
 
Tina McGrath, 48, a Navajo, mother and resident of rural northern Arizona, agrees. 
 
She says that she has endured 20 years of racial profiling and targeted policing. "I feel 
like (the police) are watching us," she says. "They know us." 
 
One of the worst encounters occurred in 2013, she says, when her family was 
celebrating her husband’s birthday in Flagstaff. 
 
Two employees of a local petrol station followed her son Perratin, who is in his mid-20s 
and suffers from schizophrenia, and daughter-in-law back to their hotel room after 
arguing with them at the petrol station.  McGrath says the employees were drunk. 
 
A fight ensued and someone at the hotel called the police. When they arrived, McGrath 
says that she tried to explain that the petrol station employees had instigated the trouble. 
 
"But the police believed (the employees). They took their story over ours," she says. 
 
When the police began to arrest Perratin, he tried to grab on to his father, and the police 
"jumped on both of them," McGrath says. 
 
"I thought they were going to kill them," she says. "I didn’t know what to do." Panicked, 
she approached the police and shouted for them to stop. She says one officer, Ryan 
Darr, pushed her and she "flew back", landing in a seated position. 
 
Documents provided by the Flagstaff Police Department (FPD) relating to this event and 
Darr’s employment record confirm much of McGrath’s account of the events. 
 



"As we struggled on the ground I felt a pull on my arm … I could also see other family 
members closing in," said Darr in the police report, explaining why he pushed McGrath. 
 
The impact broke a screw in McGrath’s spinal fusion, which had been installed to 
connect two vertebral segments in order to stop pain in her lower back. 
 
McGrath filed a complaint against Darr, citing use of excessive force. 
 
In the police records regarding the complaint, investigating officer Lieutenant Lasiewicki 
wrote in his findings that Darr, "did push Tina. The amount of force he used was minimal 
and justified. Regarding the accusation of excessive force, Sgt Darr is exonerated." 
 
Of the few witnesses Lasiewicki was able to contact regarding the incident was one of 
the petrol station employees who had been arrested for assaulting the McGrath family. 
In the police report, the individual admits he had been drinking. 
 
 

"I Want To Fight This," She Says. "I Have Rights." 
 
According to the FPD documents, Darr had received five commendations since 2008. 
The records also show three citizens’ complaints filed against him, including McGrath’s 
and another which alleged use of excessive force. Internal FPD investigations found 
them all to be "unfounded" to be untrue. 
 
Through Lasiewicki’s investigation, the city prosecutor instructed Darr to issue McGrath 
with a court summons for "resisting an officer", a misdemeanor offence. 
 
McGrath says she was never informed of the summons. After roughly a month she was 
stopped by a police officer for a traffic violation and arrested for missing her court date. 
 
"I sat in jail five (for) days with a broken back. That’s how I found out I got charged," 
McGrath says. 
 
She was given another court date and ordered to complete community service. 
 
As time went on, the spinal fusion began "bending," McGrath says, due to the broken 
screw, causing her to use a wheelchair and suffer even greater pain. 
 
"I went to court in a wheelchair. I did community service in a wheelchair." 
 
McGrath says the fusion remains unrepaired. She now walks with a cane. The pain 
reminds her "every day" of the assault. "I want to fight this," she says. "I have rights." 
 
Al Jazeera requested documents concerning the arrest records of both Winslow and 
Flagstaff police. 
 
Although Native Americans account for 25 percent of Winslow’s population, they 
averaged nearly 64 percent of arrests from 2012 to 2015, according to police filings. 
 



In nearby Flagstaff, public police reports from 2011 to 2015 show that Native Americans 
accounted for an average of 47 percent of arrests. US census data from 2010 says 
Native Americans account for 11.7 percent of the city’s population. 
 
Al Jazeera presented these statistics to Kristen Clarke, president and executive director 
of the Lawyers’ Committee for Civil Rights Under Law, which, according to their website, 
aims to "secure equal justice for all through the rule of law". 
 
"These are truly astounding disparities. When we see disparities like this, often they’re 
attributable to some unlawful policy or practice such as racial profiling," Clarke responds. 
 
According to FPD Deputy Chief Dan Musselman, 56 percent of the Native Americans 
who have been arrested are repeat offenders and more than half of them don’t live 
there, but come from other towns or the nearby Navajo Nation. 
 
Sergeant Cory Runge of the FPD said that "while the census for Coconino 
County/Flagstaff Metropolitan area indicates Native Americans account for 27 percent of 
the population", these census numbers "may be a little misleading because it is 
estimated that 75 percent of every Navajo dollar is spent in border towns." 
 
The FPD’s relationship with the community is "variable and dependent on countless 
factors involved within each interaction," Runge says. 
 
Many Native Americans come to Flagstaff to do their shopping, according to Musselman 
and Runge. 
 
McGrath agrees, saying that shops are scarce on Navajo lands, so many come to border 
towns to purchase goods. 
 
Even so, "these are significant disparities, that warrant closer analysis," Clarke says in 
reference to the arrest statistics.  "It’s hard to believe there’s any explanation other than 
race being a factor. It certainly deserves an investigation." 
 
Although McGrath wants to fight her grievances, she says that she is unsure of how to 
proceed and that there is little institutional help. 
 
McGrath sat in front of a table covered with police reports, complaints, and documents 
prepared for the Navajo Nation Human Rights Commission which was created to assist 
and investigate alleged rights abuses of Navajo Nation members committed by Native 
and non-Native institutions and their employees. 
 
Current Navajo institutions are relatively new. The commission was founded in 2006, 
after reports of violence against Navajo in border towns. 
 
The office of the president of the Navajo Nation was created in 1991 following a 
restructuring of the national Navajo government. 
 
McGrath, Benallie and other Navajo residents of Flagstaff and Winslow, say their 
national Navajo leadership and institutions have a troubled history which does not 
inspire confidence. 
 



Of the Navajo’s eight presidents, four have been investigated for criminal acts centering 
around corruption, fraud, misused funds and other charges. 
 
Albert Hale, the Navajo Nation’s second president who served from 1995 to 1998, was 
the first president to resign. His resignation was spurred by his being under investigation 
for more than 50 felonies and misdemeanors. 
 
"Leadership needs to understand … these are [governmental] institutions forced upon us 
by the colonisers. We didn’t develop these," Hale tells Al Jazeera when asked about the 
Navajo people’s lack of trust in their government when it comes handling human rights 
abuses as well as other issues. 
 
The former president stressed that offices such as the Navajo Nation Human Rights 
Commission and the presidency are not a part of the tribe’s history and that a Navajo 
"sense of justice" is lacking. 
 
Hale has also served more than a decade in the Arizona legislature and US Congress. 
He left the state legislature in 2017 after losing re-election for Arizona’s seventh district. 
 
During his long tenure in what he called the "coloniser’s institutions", Hale said that he 
tried to educate both the Navajo and his colleagues in state and national government 
about the struggles and contributions of Native people. 
 
Hale has experienced his own loss at the hands of the police. In 1952, when he was a 
toddler, his father was arrested by police in Gallup, New Mexico, another border town. 
He was missing for several days. 
 
"My mother didn’t even know where he was," he says. "Then they found him in the 
morgue." 
 
Hale believes his father was beaten to death by police while in custody, although this 
was never confirmed.  
 
Hale’s mother "was left to struggle, to find ways to support the family" and raise four 
children. 
 
He empathises with Tsingine’s child. 
 
"Police violence doesn’t end with the victim. It extends out," Hale says, and police "have 
to be made aware of that." 
 
The FBI announced a pilot programme in 2016 to track deadly use of force by law 
enforcement, but as of yet, no information is publicly available regarding the initiative. 
 
Hale says institutional powers like the police must be educated about cultural differences 
and the economic and cultural importance of Native people.  
 
Benallie, on the other hand, believes a united approach between marginalised peoples - 
Latino, black and Native - must be employed to end oppression. 
 



"We must unite to smash these structures that continue to murder us," Benallie says. 
"We have the numbers, in the end, to make that a reality." 
 

 
 

FORWARD OBSERVATIONS 
 
 

 
 
“At a time like this, scorching irony, not convincing argument, is needed.  Oh had 
I the ability, and could reach the nation’s ear, I would, pour out a fiery stream of 
biting ridicule, blasting reproach, withering sarcasm, and stern rebuke. 
 
“For it is not light that is needed, but fire; it is not the gentle shower, but thunder. 
 
“We need the storm, the whirlwind, and the earthquake.” 
 
“The limits of tyrants are prescribed by the endurance of those whom they 
oppose.” 

 
Frederick Douglass, 1852 
 
 

The Nixon administration claimed and received great credit for withdrawing the 
Army from Vietnam, but it was the rebellion of low-ranking GIs that forced the 
government to abandon a hopeless suicidal policy. 
-- David Cortright; Soldiers In Revolt 

 
 



Understanding Another World 

 
Photo by Mike Hastie 

 
From: Mike Hastie 
To: Military Resistance Newsletter 
Sent: April 19, 2017 
Subject: Understanding Another World 
 
Assassination 
Drones-------------------------------------------->          XXX 
and other means of killing. 
 
When Brian Willson witnessed atrocities in Vietnam, 
as he looked down at the dead Vietnamese civilians, 
he realized the U.S. jets that dropped napalm on those 
four villages were killing His family. These were Brian’s 
words: "In that moment, and it only took a second, I 
got it." 
 

Photo and caption from the portfolio of Mike Hastie, US Army Medic, Vietnam 
1970-71.  (For more of his outstanding work, contact hastiemike@earthlink.net) 

 

One day while I was in a bunker in Vietnam, a sniper round went over my head.  
The person who fired that weapon was not a terrorist, a rebel, an extremist, or a 
so-called insurgent.  The Vietnamese individual who tried to kill me was a citizen 
of Vietnam, who did not want me in his country.  This truth escapes millions. 
 
Mike Hastie 

mailto:hastiemike@earthlink.net


U.S. Army Medic 
Vietnam 1970-71 
December 13, 2004 

 
 

‘You Going To Goddamned Black 
Powder’ 

Trump Rails Against The Army’s Search 
For A New Rifle 

 
May 11, 2017 by Justin Coates, Duffle Blog 
 
FORT BENNING, Ga. — President Donald Trump apparently doesn’t like modern 
weaponry. 
 
In a new interview with reporters, Trump railed against what he referred to as “cartridge,” 
likely referring to the all-in-one primer, bullet and propellant systems used by modern 
militaries around the world. 
 
The Army is currently considering a new cartridge-based system as a replacement for 
the M16 family of rifles. 
 
These weapons would likely use an “intermediate” caliber, somewhere between the 
standard 5.56mm and 7.62mm used in infantry rifles and machine guns.  A larger caliber 
would be designed to ensure a rifle platoon could hit targets with more force at a longer 
range, among other benefits. 
 
Here’s what Trump told Duffel Blog: 
 
“You know the gun is quite important.  So I said what is this?  Sir, this is our cartridge 
system. He said well, we’re going to this because we wanted to have better range on our 
weapons.  I said you don’t use black powder anymore for gun?  No sir. I said, ‘Ah, how is 
it working?’  ‘Sir, not good.’  Not good.  Doesn’t have the power. You know the 
blackpowder with grapeshot is just brutal. You see that sucker going and shrapnel going 
all over the place, there’s burning gases thrown up in the air, big, big explosion, very 
strong. 
 
“And it’s very complicated, you have to be Samuel Colt to figure it out. And I said–and 
now they want to buy more cartridge.  New ones.  That use cartridge.  I said what 
system are you going to be–’Sir, we’re staying with cartridge.’  I said no you’re not. You 
going to goddamned black powder, the cartridge costs hundreds of millions of dollars 
more money and it’s no good.  Cartridge.” 
 
At press time, it was unclear who exactly Trump spoke with, whether that person had 
any authority to actually implement the policy, or if the conversation even happened in 
real life. 



 
An Army spokeswoman did not immediately respond to comment. 
 

 
 

DANGER: CAPITALISTS AT WORK 
 
 

 
 

 
 

OCCUPATION PALESTINE 
 
 

Zionist Settlers Throw Stones, But The 
Occupation Soldiers Turn Against The 

Victims 
 
09 May 2017 Amos Gvirtz, www.kibush.co.il/ 
 
On Saturday, April 29, 2017, 30 settler-colonists from Yitzhar descended upon the 
neighboring Palestinian village of `Urif and stoned houses on the edges of the village. 
 
Inhabitants attempted to chase their assailants away. Israeli soldiers who arrived did not 
prevent the harassment and arrested none of the attackers. They fired teargas and 
rubber coated ammunition at the villagers. 
 



The settler-colonists shattered house windows and wounded the owner.  The assault on 
Saturday was not the first to take place, and is not likely to be last. 
 

 

Occupation Forces Shot And Injured 
A Palestinian Fisherman With Live 

Fire: 
Spray Pesticides On Palestinian Crops 

 
MAY 9, 2017 Ma’an 
 
GAZA CITY -- Israeli naval forces opened fire at Palestinian fishermen off the coast of 
the besieged Gaza Strip on Tuesday morning, locals told Ma’an. 
 
Fishermen said that Israeli forces shot at Palestinian fishing boats in two separate 
incidents off the northern coast of Gaza on Tuesday morning. 
 
An Israeli army spokesperson told Ma’an that they were looking into the reports. 
 
Tuesday morning’s events came a day after Israeli forces shot and injured a Palestinian 
fisherman with live fire off the coat of Beit Lahiya in the northern Gaza Strip. 
 
Meanwhile, Gaza farmers told Ma’an that Israeli drones sprayed pesticides on 
Palestinian crops along the border with Israel in central and southern Gaza on Tuesday 
morning.  The pesticides, they said, damage crops in the area, which is Gaza’s main 
agricultural region. 
 
Earlier this year, Gazan farmers said that Israeli forces regularly sprayed weed killers on 
both sides of the border fence to guarantee a clear view of the area for the army. 
 
However, Gaza Ministry of Agriculture agronomist Wael Thabet told Ma’an at the time 
that the chemicals could travel up to 1,200 meters through the air away from the buffer 
zone, burning crops and causing Palestinian farmers huge economic losses. 
 
Palestinians who work near the Israeli-designated “buffer zone,” which lies on both the 
land and sea sides of Gaza, often come under fire from Israeli military forces, as the 
authorities have not made clear the precise area of the designated zone. 
 
The practice has in effect destroyed much of the agricultural and fishing sector of 
the blockaded coastal enclave. 
 

To check out what life is like under a murderous military occupation commanded 
by foreign terrorists, go to: 

http://www.palestinechronicle.com/ 
The occupied nation is Palestine.  The foreign terrorists call themselves “Israeli.” 

 



 

DANGER: POLITICIANS AT WORK 
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